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IDENTIFICATION

I . Site Name Clay County Courthouse

JtiftttMAY 2 9 1981
Site NumhPr 21-022-001

District Nome
Map Reference # 21-022-001_____ 

Topo Map Spencer 1;24,000

2. Village/Town/City Spencer
3. Street Address West 4th Street and 3rd Avenue West______ 
4- Legal Location _____Chi, Milw. St. P & Pac. RR Aldn, Block 35

County Clay

Urban: 
Rural :

5. UTM Location:
6. Owner(s) Name _
"7. Owner(s) Address.

zone. 15
subdivision 
township

.east ing __r£ 
Clay County Board

block 
rang*

325330
parcel 
section

of Supervisors
nnr»hin Q 4778600

• ubperccl 
tio
ess

V4 t*ction-1/4 section.
J.ess than 1 acr

8. Use: present

(Street address)

Courthouse
(City) (Stat.)

originnl Courthouse
(Zip)

DESCRIPTION

9. Date Of Construction 1901 Architect/Builder
10. Building Type: Dsingle family dwelling Qmultiple family dwelling D commercial 

Dindustrial Coeducational Qother institutional EFpublic dreligious Qagricultural
11. Exterior Walls: Qclapboard Bfetone Dbrick D board * batten Qshingles Dstucco 

Qother________________sandstone___________________________
12. Structural System: Qwood frame with interlocking joints

Dwood frame with light members (balloon frame) Qmasonry load-bearing walls
Diron frame Dsteel frame with curtain walls Dreinforced concrete
D other__________________________________________________

13. Condition: Dexcellent B^good Qfair Qdeteriorated 
14-. Integrity; XQoriginal site D moved-if so, when?

Notes on alterations, additions (with dates and architect, if known) and any other notable 
features of building and site:

Aluminum sash windows and main doors.

15. Related Outbuildings and Property: Dbarn Qother farm structures 
Dcarriage house Dgarage Dprivy Dother

16. is the building endangered f xxP no Dyes-if so, why?

17. Surroundings of the building: Qopen land D woodland Qscattered outbuildings 
Ddensely built-up ^commercial D industrial Presidential Dother_________

18. Map 19. Photo
Roll__Frame .View



SIGNIFICANCE (Indicate sources of information for all statements)

2O. Architectural Significance
^Sa. Key structure/individually may qualify for the National Register 

D b. Contributing structure DC. Not eligible/intrusion

A well-preserved courthouse in a neoclassical style, with largely 
intact interior mainspaces (tile floors, main staircase). Clock 
tower and giant portico are impressive exterior features.

21^Hlstorical Significance Theme(s)——Politics/Gave 
iDa. Key .structure/individually may qualify for the National Register 
D b. Contributing structure DC. Not eligible/intrusion

Ihis courthouse is locally significant as the historical focus of county 
government, and of the political power and prestige derived from the 
community's status as the county seat. As center of county government, 
an Iowa town was reasonably assured of economic and population growth, 
and a prominent role in local social and political life. The county 
courthouse represents a significant public investment in a structure 
built not simply for utilitarian purposes, but also as a monument as­ 
sociated with the historical importance of county organization and de­ 
velopment.

See Continuation Sheet

22. Sources (for primary and secondary sources, give complete facts of publication: 
author, title, place of publication, date, etc.):

Andreas, A.T. Illustrated Historical Atlas of Iowa. Chicago: Andreas
Atlas Co., 1875. 

Pratt, LeJtoy G. The Counties and Courthouses of Iowa. Mason City, Iowa:
Klipto Printing and Office Supply Co., 1977. 

Stanek, Edward and Jacqueline. Iowa's Magnificent County Courthouses.
Des Maines: Wallace-Homestead Book Co., 1976.
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CLAY COUNTY

On June 7, 1859, Judge A. W. Hubbard appointed a commission to 
locate the county seat of Clay County. On July 16, 1859, the commis­ 
sioners cited a location in what was then called Spencer Township, as 
their choice. They did make it perfectly clear, however, that the 
people had a right to accept or reject their selection. As things would 
have it, the people did reject their selection and asked the following 
year that Peterson be chosen as the site. A special election was held 
and ten votes were cast, thus picking Peterson to be the seat of gov­ 
ernment. The ten voters also authorized the construction of public 
buildings for a maximum cost of $6,000. The courthouse was promptly 
erected. The bill presented by the contractor for the courthouse totaled 
$7,500 but he was only paid $6,900.

Even as the courthouse in Peterson was being constructed, the 
population of northern Clay County was rapidly growing. In 1871 the 
county seat was relocated to Spencer. A stock company was organized 
to build a courthouse. Those who were unable to buy a share with 
hard cash substituted a day's labor. Upon completion of the building it 
was sold to the county for $1,333. By 1882 this courthouse had become 
too small for the expanding county offices. A new two-story brick 
courthouse was built for $4,435 on a lot donated by private citizens in 
1884. A Clay County citizen purchased the first courthouse at Spencer 
to use for a barn. It was then turned into a cement block factory, and 
in 1908, was cut in half and remade into two houses.

Members of the public voiced complaints that the 1884 courthouse 
was too plain and unpretentious. By 1900 this sentiment had spread 
and the beautiful present-day courthouse was constructed and opened 
in September, 1901. It is a fabulous red stone structure employing 
pillars capped with terra cotta and domes capped with bronze, that 
had a final price tag of $60,000.

-from Stanek, Edward, and Jaoqueline Stanek, 
Iowa's Magnificent County Courthouses. Des 
Moines: Wallace-Homestead Book Co., 1976.


